
RFP DOC-21-044 Electronic Health Records Q&A 
 
 

Q. The RFP states that the selected EHR vendor will need to interface with VirginiaCORIS. 

Can the DOC confirm if this is a uni-directional or bi-directional interface? If bi-directional, please list all 
the data elements that will need to be exchanged between the EHR and VirginiaCORIS.   
 
A. The interface between VirginiaCORIS and the EHR system will be uni-directional from VirginiaCORIS 

to the EHR with information like location, inmate transfer, housing, bed, Medicaid eligibility.  As 

updates occur in these informational areas in VirginiaCORIS, they will need to be applied to the EHR.  

It will also be bi-directional on appointment scheduling, using API.  The development of the interface 

will be a joint development effort between the EHR Offeror and the VirginiaCORIS supplier. 

 

Q. Does the DOC utilize a radiology system, and will that require an interface?  If yes, please name this 

vendor.  

 

A. No, VADOC does not utilize a radiology system. 

 

Q. Based on Section B. Stakeholders (Pg 15-16), the State says that the “Count of Providers taken in 2020 = 
100” and “the Count of Non-Providers taken in 2020 = 250.” The State then includes the statement, 
“Note: these are approximate numbers, VADOC also utilizes contract staff to supplement state staffing 
levels.” 

 
Can DOC please confirm accuracy of the approximate 100 named VA DOC providers?  
 

A. The number of providers fluctuates; therefore, an approximate number was given for Offerors to 

provide a point to develop costs.  At the time of contract award, the number of providers will be 

confirmed. 

 
Are the privately run prisons also included in this project?  
 

A. Privately run prisons are not included in this project scope. 
  

Q. What is the maximum (concurrent) number of users that will be on the system at any given time (please 
include Contractors)?  175 

 
Q. Does the number of concurrent users also include contractors? If not, do you know what the total would 

be inclusive on contractors?  

 

A. Yes, the number of concurrent users include VADOC employees and third-party contractors. 

 
R. How many shifts are there per day?  There are three shifts –  

 
A. VADOC operates 24/7/365 healthcare services.  However, the third shift (defined in the late evening 

through the middle of night to early morning) will have the least number of activity and healthcare 
resources working. 



 

Q. Are the shifts different between the facilities?  

 

A. No, there are no differences in shifts between the facilities. 

 

Q. Is VADOC interested in having one all-inclusive EHR system inclusive of an eMAR?   

 

A. VADOC currently uses an eMAR solution called Sapphire, which is included with the pharmacy 

services contract that it has with Diamond Pharmacy.  VADOC would be interested in understanding 

if integration between Sapphire and an EHR with eMAR functionality could effectively occur or if the 

EHR solution offered can only use its included eMAR functionality. 

 

Q. Will VADOC be open to vendors proposing their eMAR to replace Diamond Sapphire’s eMAR?  

 

A. Yes, VADOC would be interested in seeing the proposal on a using the EHR’s eMAR functionality to 

replace Sapphire eMAR.  However, if this proposal is put forward, the eMAR must integrate with 

Diamond Pharmacy as VADOC’s pharmacy services provider. 

 

Q. Please name any VADOC resources that will be allocated for this project (ie Project Manager, IT Manager, 

Super Users, etc.)  

 
A.   There will be an EHR Project Manager, a team of VADOC employees and/or contractors with EHR 

implementation, IT security, and/or HIT experience, VADOC Health Services Unit clinical staff and 
Information Technology Unit (ITU) teams providing support, decisioning and direction, and any other 
resources the agency deems as appropriate to use or hire to implement the system successfully. 

 

Q. Are there any State mandates for providing on-site training or go-live support due to COVID-19? Please 

list any restrictions that may alter vendors training plans. 

 

A. Because VADOC is a public safety agency and operates in a correctional environment, ensuring public 

safety and security are foremost in every activity undertaken at the agency.  Non-DOC employees / 

contractors / sub-contractors may be subjected to background / security checks before being allowed 

to work onsite or in Commonwealth of Virginia / VADOC IT networks.  All resources are held 

accountable to adhering to COV/VADOC IT security protocols.  Training done onsite, at a correctional 

facility, will be subject to review and approval from VADOC leaders like wardens, chief of security and 

operations, and/or other VADOC executive or upper-level managers. 

 

Due to the COVID-19 public health emergency, VADOC has implemented additional public health 

safety guidelines like mandatory mask wearing at its correctional facilities and administrative 

buildings, social distancing of six feet or more, allowing its workforce to work from home as needed 

and using virtual meeting platforms like Google Meet, Cisco WebEx, and MS Teams to replace in-

person meetings.  Until the pandemic reaches a level where public health safety is not compromised, 

these measures will be in place. 

 

 



Q. We understand that VA DOC encourages Vendor’s to partner with small businesses for this project, with 

a minimum goal of 3%. Can you confirm this is a goal, and not a requirement? 

 

A. It is a goal, not a requirement. 

 

Q.  Please provide us with the incumbent information, if any. 

 

A.   There is no incumbent as no contract has been entered into at this point. 

 

Q.   What will be the contract value for this opportunity?  

 

A. With no prior contract history, no way to predict actual cost.  The commonwealth's/VADOC's goal is 

to establish a "best value" contract. 

 

Q. What will be set aside for this opportunity? 

 

A. There is no "set-aside" for this solicitation.  "Set-aside" in a state solicitation refers to restricting the 

offeror response to SWaM businesses only, but the VADOC has waived that option since this 

commodity is deemed too specialized to restrict competition thusly. 

 

Q. What will be the NAICS Code for this opportunity? 

 

A. The state utilizes the NIGP code system, as shown on page 1 of the RFP. 

 

Q. Last time this proposal was released in 2018, it was canceled a year later.  It was announced that Cerner 

had an exclusive contract.  What has changed and will that be a factor in this RFP? 

 

A. The VADOC has decided to issue another RFP because of budget constraints and the General 

Assembly did not language in the budget mandating us to continue utilizing the VITA contract.  We 

don't know whether the VITA contract is going to come back into the picture or not. 

 
Q.  Will there be any emphasis on scoring for VA/SWAM business? 

 

A. Being certified as a SWaM will still be counted as evaluation criteria in this solicitation. 

 

Q.   When do you expect to award? 

 

A. That will depend on how long negotiations take, but hopefully within the next six months. 

 

Q. Will you extend the due date given the short turnaround from the answers being posted & the due date? 

 

A. We are not planning on extending the due date at this time. 

 

 



Q.    Would the VADOC consider the solution being hosted in their datacenter with servers being fully 

managed by the vendor?  

 

A. VADOC would review the Offeror's proposal for the EHR solution to be hosted in the Commonwealth 

of Virginia's data center with servers being managed by the vendor.  However, security review by and 

final approval for hosting in this manner would be subject to the Virginia Information Technologies 

Agency (VITA), the agency that has IT oversight and governance over COV executive branch agencies 

(which VADOC is an executive branch agency). 

 

Q. Please elaborate on what data may need conversion/migration. 

 

A. VADOC may be collecting healthcare data through other software tools like Excel, so that data may 

need to be imported into the EHR system.  VADOC is using another application for inmate 

demographic information, appointment scheduling and tracking movement within a correctional 

facility.  That appointment data will need to be exchanged between the VADOC's offender 

management system (OMS known as VirginiaCORIS) and the EHR. 

 

Q.    Does the state now, or is the state considering any Medicaid billing for inmate care? 

 

A. VADOC is not Medicaid billing now, but the agency could implement a process for Medicaid billing in 

the future. 

Q.    Will travel be reimbursed by Virginia? 

 

A. VADOC follows the GSA standards for travel reimbursement rates, and travel would be reviewed and 

approved by VADOC before reimbursement. 

 

Q.    How many total EHR users does the state expect? 

 

A.   175 healthcare providers, includes both VADOC employees and third-party contractors that VADOC 

employs to provide or augment existing healthcare resources. 

 

 Q.    Does the state prefer to have all end-users trained by the vendor?  

 

A.   VADOC will work with the EHR Offeror to provide a “train-the-trainer” model. 

 

Q.    What is the official authorized total bed capacity? 

 

A.  VADOC's count varies too much to give an authorized inmate population at 100% capacity.  VADOC 

scales up or down according to its needs to house inmates.  Therefore, the Average Daily Population 

is the best indicator for a total system wide bed count. 



Q. What are all the documents/forms that would need to be in our system for the correctional facility to 

conduct screenings? 

 

A.  DOC utilizes paper forms currently.  During implementation hope to identify, the forms needed at 

that time. 

 

Q.  What is the discharge process? 

 

A.  TBD at later date. 

 

Q.  What functions/features are you looking for in regards to Mental Health? 

 

A.  TBD at later date.  Should be included in offerors proposal. 

 

Q.  How would you like our system to display the Court Orders? 

 

A.  TBD at later date.  Should be included in offerors proposal. 

 

Q.  Brian Briggs – Budget constraints/2018 –  

 

A.  Budget allotment by the GA constrains us. 

 

Q.  Ricky Cotton - Will there be a scanning project for the paper records?  Will the vendor be required to 

supply end-user hardware PC’s/monitors) for the facilities? 

A.  No, not at this time; there are too many paper records to be scanned and it would be highly inefficient 
and highly expensive to scan in paper records into the EHR system.  The system will probably be used 
immediately to pick up where the paper-based process left off.  VADOC looks forward to reviewing 
the project plans that address this aspect. 

 
No, the RFP asks for a SaaS solution.  The solution will be used on VADOC supplied equipment, 
network, devices, electronic peripherals like monitors.  

 
Q.  Mike Futrell – Why we didn’t split the number of facilities to give smaller business opportunities?  Is there 

an opportunity for them? 
 

A.  GA required we do all DOC facilities.  Small business can contract with larger contractors as 
subcontractors. 

 
Q, Greg Fishback (Millennia Enterprise Corp.) - You indicated 175 healthcare providers. In the industry, a 

healthcare provider is a licensed provider. They usually require 3 or 4 support individuals. Will there be 
175 medical professionals or end users? 

 
A.  Would like to see offerors definitions of roles of providers. 

 

 



Q.  What external and internal applications would our system have to integrate with?  
 

A.  The applications of the entities that VADOC would like to integrate with are listed in the RFP. 
 
 

Q.  What are all the documents/forms that would need to be in our system for the correctional facility to 
conduct screenings?   

 
A.  VADOC has multiple paper forms in use.  What we hope to do with the implementation of a system is 

to get away from paper based workflow and configure the system to gather the data elements on the 
forms.  The data fields in the documents / forms will gathered to create clinical workflows that fit 
VADOC’s needs. 

 
Q.  What is the discharge process as it relates to health needs or health care?  

 
A.  The discharge process has too many steps and involves detailed conversations.  This process will be 

documented and defined during project implementation. 
 

Q.   What functions/features are you looking for in regards to Mental Health?  
 

A.  VADOC expects Offerors to provide mental health functionalities and capabilities in their EHR 
systems that meet correctional mental health professional standards, protocols and best practices. 

 
Q.  How would you like our system to display the Court Orders?   

 
A.  VADOC would like the EHR Offeror to submit its design and data elements with regards to Court 

Orders.  VADOC will not prescribe what the design and/or data elements should be. 
 

Q.  Can you please go back to the question about the cancelled procurement back in 2018 and provide 
more clarification? Response is not quite clear. 

 
A.  In 2018, VADOC released an EHR RFP.  In the 2019 Budget Bill, the Virginia General Assembly 

mandated that VADOC utilize an existing VITA contract for the Dept of Behavioral Health and 
Developmental Services (DBHDS)’s EHR implementation.  VADOC cancelled is RFP and has been 
working with the software vendor named in that contract, Cerner Corporation.  In the 2020 Budget 
Bill, the Virginia General Assembly removed the language mandating the use of the existing VITA 
contract and reduced the funding for VADOC’s EHR implementation.  In 2021, VADOC made the 
decision to release an EHR RFP. 

 
Q.  2018 budget constraints were mentioned, please clarify. 
 

A.  VADOC cannot spend beyond what is appropriated in the budget.  Those budget constraints are 
unknown as they change each appropriation cycle and VADOC has no control on what is 
appropriated.  From a procurement standpoint, the best value for the best price will need to be 
proposed. 

 
 
 



Q.  Why did we go from six women’s facilities to 45?   
 
A.  VADOC had an implementation plan several years ago to implement the system into six women’s 

facilities; it wanted to do the implementation in a phased approach.  The Virginia General Assembly 
mandated in 2019 that VADOC increase its scope to include all correctional facilities. 

 
Q.  Is this an opportunity for this project to be split up between other vendors?   
 
A.  VADOC realizes that there will be challenges to a small business to do such a large scope project. 

This project could provide opportunities for smaller businesses to work with larger businesses as 
subcontractors. 

 
Q.  You indicated 175 healthcare providers. In the industry, a healthcare provider is a licensed provider. 

They usually require 3 or 4 support individuals. Will there be 175 medical professionals or end 
users? 

 
A.  VADOC has had difficulties in recruiting and retaining healthcare professionals, so therefore there 

are challenges in getting precise headcounts of those resources.  The headcount will be finalized as 
we approach or are at contract award.  VADOC also notes that there can be differences among EHR 
Offerors on the definition of “provider” which in turn determines the number of licenses.  
Therefore, VADOC will be reviewing Offerors licensing provisions. 

 
 
 

 
 


